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          1  ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Good afternoon.

          3  I'm Council Member Jim Gennaro, Chair of the New

          4  York City Council, City Council Committee on

          5  Environmental Protection and I would like to welcome

          6  you all to this hearing.

          7                 Today this Committee will hear

          8  testimony on Intro. No. 208, a local law to amend

          9  the Administrative Code of the City of New York, in

         10  relation to applying exemptions to certain fuel and

         11  technology requirements to Department of Correction

         12  vehicles specially equipped for emergency response

         13  and to buses purchased for use by the Department of

         14  Correction. The proposed legislation will make

         15  several amendments to Local Laws 38 and 39 of 2005.

         16  Plus, everyone remembers those bills, they were part

         17  of the sweeping package of air bills that we did

         18  last year, and this bill would, this bill today

         19  would seek to make changes in those local laws.

         20                 Okay, and some of the changes would

         21  be first light- and medium-duty vehicles purchased

         22  for the Department that are especially equipped for

         23  emergency response would not have to meet the

         24  requirement of Local Law 38 regarding purchasing the

         25  lowest-emitting vehicles to meet the City's needs.
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          2                 Second, the Department of Correction

          3  would not have to meet the requirement, which was

          4  established in Local Law 6 of 1991, that 20 percent

          5  of all buses purchased each year by the City be

          6  powered by alternative fuel.

          7                 Third, heavy vehicles equipped for

          8  emergency responses, except for buses so equipped,

          9  would also be exempted from the retrofit, and

         10  ultra-low sulfur vehicle fuel requirements of Local

         11  Law 39.

         12                 Today we'll hear testimony from the

         13  Department of Corrections to explaining their

         14  reasons for requesting these amendments to Local

         15  Laws 38 and 39.

         16                 We will also hear from the

         17  Environmental community, as well as other members of

         18  the public who may wish to testify.

         19                 Thank you, all, for being here, and

         20  before we call upon our panel to begin their

         21  testimony, I would like to recognize the presence of

         22  Council Member Koppell from the Bronx, Council

         23  Member Stewart from Brooklyn, staff of the

         24  Committee, Donna DeCostanzo, Dan Avery, Veronica

         25  McNeil and I would like to thank Eddie Batista from
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          2  the Mayor's Office, in helping us to get this

          3  hearing together, as with all of the hearings of

          4  this Committee, and just before we call upon the

          5  first panel, I've been briefed by staff on the

          6  issue. I'm certainly cognizant on what your concerns

          7  are, I'd like to have the opportunity to hear in

          8  more detail from you, and thank you for providing me

          9  with that opportunity today, and also to pose

         10  questions to you and your staff.

         11                 So, thank you. Thank you for being

         12  here.

         13                 So, the first panel, Chief of

         14  Department Carolyn Thomas; Deputy Commissioner John

         15  Antonelli; and Deputy Commissioner Robert Maruca. Am

         16  I saying that right, okay. So, with that said, I'd

         17  like to welcome you, once again, for being here.

         18                 It is a practice of this Committee to

         19  swear in all of our witnesses, so the Counsel of the

         20  Committee, Donna DeCostanzo, will give the oath, and

         21  then once you're sworn in you can state your names

         22  for the record and proceed with your good testimony.

         23                 Donna.

         24                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

         25  right hand.
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          2                 In the testimony that you're about to

          3  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

          4  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ANTONELLI: I do.

          6                 (Witnesses sworn.)

          7                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ANTONELLI: Good

          9  afternoon, Chairman Gennaro, and members of the

         10  Committee. I am pleased to speak before you today in

         11  support of Intro. 208, which amends the

         12  Administrative Code to provide for exemptions to

         13  certain fuel and technology requirements for

         14  Correction buses and emergency response vehicles.

         15                 A year ago the Council passed and the

         16  Mayor signed a package of environmental legislation.

         17  We at the Department of Correction are very proud of

         18  our environmental record and are committed to doing

         19  as much as we can practically do to work in an

         20  environmentally friendly way.

         21                 For example, the Department converted

         22  the Powerhouse on Rikers Island from a boiler plant

         23  that burned fuel oil, to a plant fueled by

         24  cleaner-burning natural gas.

         25                 We also dramatically reduced our fuel
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          2  consumption by investing in the capital

          3  rehabilitation of the steam tunnel on Rikers Island.

          4                 This year, we are completing the

          5  construction of an ethanol fueling station to comply

          6  with the City's alternative fuel legislation, and we

          7  are purchasing hybrid vehicles for our non-emergency

          8  response fleet.

          9                 We are also seeking to be more

         10  environmentally friendly in the future. Even our

         11  capacity planning recognizes environmental issues.

         12  Earlier today I testified about our plan to build

         13  jails in the boroughs nearer to the courts.

         14                 This plan would reduce the number of

         15  miles that our buses travel from Rikers Island to

         16  Brooklyn and the Bronx by more than 50 percent.

         17                 As required by the new law, we would

         18  also purchase the lowest-emitting vehicles available

         19  that will allow us to effectively transport inmates

         20  and staff and appropriately respond to emergencies.

         21                 While we are steadfast in this

         22  commitment, we are concerned that certain provisions

         23  of the law will ultimately prevent this agency from

         24  replacing buses and seriously hinder our ability to

         25  replace emergency vehicles.
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          2                 This bill would amend the law to

          3  exempt Department of Correction buses from the

          4  requirements of Section 24-163.2 of the

          5  Administrative Code. Unless amended, these

          6  provisions will prevent the Department from meeting

          7  its mandate of ensuring the transport of inmates to

          8  and from courts throughout the City.

          9                 With a total of 134 buses, the

         10  Department of Correction is only second to the

         11  Department of Education in the use of buses. And

         12  otherwise comprises approximately 89 percent of the

         13  City's inventory of buses, covered by this

         14  legislation.

         15                 The Correction bus fleet is primarily

         16  used to fulfill the Department's core mission of

         17  transporting inmates to and from court.

         18                 Due to size constraints, the maximum

         19  length of an inmate bus is 372 inches. Correction is

         20  essentially limited to using school buses. Sally

         21  ports, secure areas for bus entrance and egress, at

         22  the New York City courthouses and jails, are too

         23  small for larger buses.

         24                 The school buses are retrofitted for

         25  Correction's needs. They are outfitted with security
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          2  compartments for inmate confinement, lights and

          3  sirens for emergencies, and police radios.

          4                 A small number of Department buses

          5  are also used on Rikers Island to transport visitors

          6  and staff, including Emergency Services Units

          7  responding to jail emergencies. Because the turning

          8  radii on Rikers Island are so tight, we require that

          9  our visitor and staff buses be no longer than 468

         10  inches. Neither we nor DCAS are aware of any

         11  alternate fuel or hybrid buses available on the

         12  market that can be used for inmate transport or that

         13  meet our specifications for visitor and staff buses.

         14                 The hybrid, gas/electric buses, used

         15  by the Metropolitan Transit Authority are too large

         16  at 480 inches to fit in court and jail sally ports

         17  or to make tight turns on Rikers Island. They are

         18  also four times the cost of the buses we currently

         19  use. If the Department is unable to replace its

         20  fleet as needed, we simply will be unable to meet

         21  our mandate to deliver inmates to court, bringing

         22  the criminal justice system to a halt.

         23                 We propose, therefore, that the

         24  Department of Correction buses be exempt from

         25  Section 24-163.2 we note, however, that these buses
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          2  will be subject to the requirements of Section

          3  24-163.4, which would require that such buses use

          4  ultra-low-sulfur diesel fuel and be equipped with

          5  technology to reduce the emission of particulate

          6  matter and nitrogen oxides. This would achieve the

          7  same pollutant reduction objectives imposed on the

          8  Department of Education school buses, while also

          9  ensuring that Correction continues to carry out its

         10  essential role in the criminal justice system.

         11                 The proposed legislation would also

         12  amend language that would interfere with our ability

         13  to replace emergency response vehicles. Under

         14  Section 24-163.1 of the Administrative Code,

         15  emergency response vehicle purchases of the

         16  Department of Environmental Protection, the Office

         17  of Emergency Management, the Sheriff's Office of the

         18  Department of Finance, the Police Department, and

         19  the Fire Department are exempt from alternative fuel

         20  requirements. Section 24-163.4 provides an identical

         21  exemption for emergency vehicles from

         22  ultra-low-sulfur diesel fuel and best available

         23  technology requirements.

         24                 It is essential to public safety that

         25  emergency response vehicles of the Department of
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          2  Correction be included within these exemptions.

          3                 The Department of Correction is a

          4  uniformed law enforcement agency. With more than

          5  9,000 peace officers, the New York City Department

          6  of Correction is second only to the NYPD in the

          7  number of City employees that are charged with

          8  public safety.

          9                 The New York State Vehicle Traffic

         10  Law recognizes Correction vehicles as emergency

         11  vehicles with all the associated powers and

         12  privileges. Correction personnel are routinely

         13  called upon to respond to emergencies involving

         14  inmates, staff, visitors, and the general public.

         15                 New York City jails are among the

         16  safest in the nation. Nevertheless, at any hour of

         17  any given day, correction emergency response teams

         18  and chain-of-command leadership may be called upon

         19  to commands throughout the city, or to roads leading

         20  to State prisons to deal with the occurrences of

         21  inmate-on-inmate and inmate-on-staff violence,

         22  inmate escapes or attempted escapes, suicide

         23  attempts, medical emergencies, visitor arrests,

         24  narcotic finds, fires, breakdowns of vehicles

         25  containing inmate passengers, and other serious
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          2  events.

          3                 As uniformed law enforcement

          4  officers, correction personnel handle incidents that

          5  a police officer would typically handle were it not

          6  that it occurred while in the unique confines of a

          7  correctional setting. In fact, Correction personnel

          8  are the first, and in most cases, the only

          9  responders to emergencies in the correctional

         10  environment.

         11                 Even on occasions when other agencies

         12  assist in emergency response, Correction personnel

         13  must be on site to coordinate activity to ensure

         14  security is not compromised.

         15                 In essence, Correction is Police,

         16  Fire, and EMS, responding to all the emergencies of

         17  a city of about 15,000 individuals.

         18                 Like these other entities, Correction

         19  operates and responds to emergencies 24 hours a day,

         20  seven days a week.

         21                 Correction responds to emergencies as

         22  often as fire, DEP, OEM or the Sheriff's Office.

         23  These include inmate assaults and similar incidents,

         24  but Correction personnel also contained 5 fires,

         25  conducted more than 4,600 emergency ambulatory runs
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          2  to local hospitals, and performed over 700

          3  high-security escorts during the last year.

          4                 In addition to transporting more than

          5  1,200 inmates to court every weekday, Correction

          6  routinely transports inmates to upstate prisons,

          7  including high-security transfers of notorious

          8  prisoners.

          9                 Vehicle breakdowns involving inmate

         10  passengers occur not only within the City but also

         11  en route upstate, and require immediate emergency

         12  response to secure the area and transfer the inmates

         13  to another vehicle.

         14                 Additionally, Department personnel

         15  must respond to infrastructure failures at times

         16  requiring emergency evacuation of inmates and

         17  disasters as a recent blackout.

         18                 Moreover, Correction teams must be

         19  prepared to respond to inmate disturbances and

         20  hostage rescue situations.

         21                 The Department of Correction is also

         22  an essential component of the City's emergency

         23  response in non-Correction emergencies.

         24                 We are the first responders to

         25  incidents at LaGuardia Airport. Our Emergency
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          2  Services Units assist in search and rescue for

          3  building collapses, responded to the crash of Flight

          4  No. 587 in the Rockaways, and worked side-by-side

          5  with NYPD during 9/11 for several months.

          6                 The Department's K-9 unit is

          7  frequently called in to assist NYPD in major

          8  operations and the Transportation Division is

          9  routinely called upon to assist NYPD in large scale

         10  operations.

         11                 To provide the appropriate level of

         12  response to these emergencies, many of the

         13  Department vehicles, both marked and unmarked are

         14  specially equipped for emergency response. About 100

         15  of our light duty vehicles, only 17 percent of our

         16  total fleet, are equipped with lights and siren

         17  packages to ensure rapid response to emergencies. On

         18  average, this represents about ten new purchases a

         19  year.

         20                 In general, marked vehicles are

         21  assigned to the Department's Emergency Services Unit

         22  highly-trained group of officers that serves as this

         23  agency's first responders.

         24                 We are dependent on the Emergency

         25  Services Unit to contain yard disturbances, or
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          2  potential riots, to assist with emergency evacuation

          3  and conduct tactical search operations in our jails

          4  throughout the City.

          5                 We are also dependent on the

          6  Emergency Services Unit to respond to vehicle

          7  breakdowns or accidents with inmates aboard. Their

          8  role is to provide emergency inmate extrications,

          9  administer first aid, and direct traffic. ESU's

         10  expedited response to these incidents is critical

         11  for public safety.

         12                 Similar to other agencies providing

         13  emergency response, high level supervisory staff

         14  include wardens, chiefs and other senior level

         15  staff, are also called on to respond to crime scenes

         16  and other incidents.

         17                 These personnel are assigned

         18  specially equipped unmarked vehicles and are

         19  required to respond at any hour of the day often

         20  from home or across the City.

         21                 At a minimum, therefore, the

         22  Department of Correction has no less of a need for

         23  exemption from these requirements than those

         24  organizations currently exempt, and its vehicles

         25  equipped for emergency response should be included
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          2  within the statutory exemptions.

          3                 To impose requirements of Local Law

          4  No. 38 on the Department's emergency response

          5  vehicles would compromise public safety. The

          6  Department must be able to appropriately outfit its

          7  emergency response vehicles with appropriate

          8  suspension and handling packages, with K-9 cages,

          9  and only as necessary with lights and sirens. When

         10  best in its class vehicles can be appropriately

         11  outfitted without compromising our mission, we will

         12  gladly purchase them. However, we cannot be limited

         13  to a particular vehicle if that vehicle will not

         14  meet our emergency response needs. We cannot, and

         15  will not, jeopardize the health and safety of our

         16  staff, inmates or the public.

         17                 The limitations imposed by the law

         18  prolong overall response times, which could cause

         19  incidents to escalate endangering the safety of the

         20  public, inmates, staff and visitors. Unless the law

         21  is amended to address these limitations, the

         22  Department's only means of preserving this emergency

         23  response capability, would be to keep existing

         24  emergency response vehicles long past their useful

         25  lives, an option that would not be available
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          2  indefinitely.

          3                 Since older vehicles pollute more and

          4  are more costly to maintain, the failure to exempt

          5  the Department of Correction would likely result in

          6  more pollution and not less, the opposite of what

          7  the law intends.

          8                 Although the law could be interpreted

          9  to allow some administrative flexibility, the

         10  Department should not be expected to rely on how the

         11  law may be interpreted or applied. The risk is

         12  simply too great.

         13                 Justifying the exemption of each of

         14  the Department's fleet of emergency response

         15  vehicles on a case-by-case basis is not an effective

         16  solution, and could potentially result in

         17  underequipped vehicles responding to urge and

         18  life-threatening situations.

         19                 Exempting all Correction Emergency

         20  Response vehicles outright would ensure that the

         21  Department could continue to carry out its public

         22  safety mission.

         23                 For these reasons the Correction

         24  Department should be exempt from the law along with

         25  Police, Fire, OEM, DEP and the Sheriff's Office.
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          2                 To summarize, this amendment

          3  recognizes Department of Correction's essential role

          4  in providing emergency services to New York, and

          5  provides it with more flexibility in meeting

          6  emission standards for motor vehicles, consistent

          7  with the New York State Vehicle Traffic Law

          8  Emergency Vehicle Designation.

          9                 Thank you for your time, and I'd be

         10  happy to answer any questions you may have.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you,

         12  Deputy Commissioner Antonelli, for your

         13  comprehensive staff -- for your comprehensive

         14  statement, rather, and, you know, you and your staff

         15  should be commended for, you know, providing such a

         16  comprehensive articulation of your views of the

         17  Department.

         18                 And, yes, of course before I

         19  continue, I just wish to recognize the presence of

         20  Council Member Vallone, Chair of our Public Safety

         21  Committee, who has joined us.

         22                 And, yes, I'd like to impose some

         23  questions to you and your agency. But before I do

         24  that, I just would like to commend the Department

         25  for all of its environmental initiatives and, you
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          2  know, the boiler plant change, and the capital

          3  rehab, the steam tunnel, the ethanol fueling

          4  station. These are all wonderful great steps forward

          5  that your agency has taken the initiative to do. We

          6  do very much appreciate your dedication to a clean

          7  environment, in addition to the overwhelming mission

          8  that you have to do, you know, day-in and day-out.

          9                 Let me thank you. Let me commence my

         10  questioning.

         11                 The 20 percent requirement of the

         12  City's bus purchases for alternative fuel is from

         13  Local Law 6 of 1991. Since Local Law 38 did not

         14  change this requirement, why is it now a problem for

         15  the Department when it's been in existence for I

         16  guess 15 years?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ANTONELLI: It was

         18  never a problem because there were never any

         19  alternative fuel buses that met our needs, and each

         20  year we were committed to purchase the buses we

         21  needed.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         23                 I would like to ask you about what

         24  research has DOC conducted to determine whether

         25  there are alternative fuel buses that are currently
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          2  available that meet the DOC's needs; what research

          3  have you done?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ANTONELLI:

          5  Besides the Internet, of course, the Department has

          6  spoken to DCAS, the Department of Transportation,

          7  Department of Education, the MTA, and various

          8  vendors of alternative fuel buses. So, we've done,

          9  you know, quite a bit of research.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         11                 We understand that there may be at

         12  least one company that can manufacturer hybrid buses

         13  that are approximately 360 inches. Is this something

         14  that you're aware of? And would that potentially be

         15  a product that could be purchased that would sort of

         16  solve the dilemma? Are you aware of that?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ANTONELLI: We

         18  were made aware recently of a hybrid bus, and we

         19  took a look at it. We took a look at the

         20  specifications, and the finding is, the capacity

         21  would be reduced by around a third. It would require

         22  that we actually have more buses on the road, so it

         23  certainly wouldn't work for us.

         24                 And the other sort of piece of it is

         25  that the school buses we do use have special tractor
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          2  trailer suspensions to support all the extra weight

          3  because the buses have to be compartmentalized,

          4  because obviously we have different populations and

          5  security levels that can't be mixed.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: They're all in

          7  the same bus. They're all in the same bus?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ANTONELLI: Yes.

          9  They're protected from each other by these

         10  compartments. That creates a lot of weight.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ANTONELLI: Right.

         13                 So it has to be on a tractor trailer

         14  suspension.

         15                 So for both those reasons --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ANTONELLI: --

         18  Reduced capacity, it just won't work.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         20                 Can the DOC use alt fuel buses at its

         21  borough locations, such as its facility in Brooklyn?

         22  And if not, why not?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ANTONELLI: The

         24  problem is our buses have to be interchangeable. We

         25  use them throughout the City and they have to be
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          2  able to go into different sally ports. We can't be

          3  in a position where we have a certain set of buses

          4  and only work in certain facilities.

          5                 And the majority of the sally ports

          6  do require the smaller bus.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

          8                 When and if new technologies emerge

          9  that would allow DOC to meet the alternative fuel

         10  bus purchasing requirements of Section 24-163.2,

         11  would the DOC be willing to purchase such buses?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ANTONELLI:

         13  Absolutely. Our record is clear. We want to maintain

         14  a cleaner environment.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We just wanted

         16  to get that on the record.

         17                 Will the DOC be actively tracking

         18  alternative fuel technology changes to keep

         19  up-to-date on these matters?

         20                 And if so, how would you do that?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ANTONELLI: I

         22  think we would continue what we're doing. I mean,

         23  obviously internet research, talking with all the

         24  procurement agencies and the other agencies that

         25  procure major fleets.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

          3  you. Yes, I'll come back for some more questions,

          4  Mr. Antonelli. But now I'd like to recognize Council

          5  Member Koppell for questions.

          6                 Council Member Koppell.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: 24-163.2,

          8  explain exactly what that requires you to do. That's

          9  what you're asking us to exempt your buses from,

         10  right?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ANTONELLI: Yes.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Well, what is

         13  it requiring you to do?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ANTONELLI: It

         15  requires us to purchase 20 percent of them through

         16  that alternate fuel, and the only alternate fuel,

         17  the only technology right now that is viable is, not

         18  for us, but for the industry, seems to be hybrid.

         19  And there just aren't vehicles that meet our needs.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: So the hybrid

         21  vehicle would meet the definition of alternative

         22  fuel?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ANTONELLI: Yes.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: And you say

         25  that there are none right now?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ANTONELLI: None

          3  to meet our specific requirements at the moment.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: And the

          5  number of these that you'd have to buy if it was 20

          6  percent of your requirements, how many would that be

          7  per year?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ANTONELLI: Per

          9  year? We buy about 18 buses per year, so 20 percent

         10  of that.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Would be two.

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ANTONELLI: Yes.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Two. And you

         14  say there are none available --

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ANTONELLI: None

         16  that meet our requirements.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Would you

         18  accept an amendment that would say that you would be

         19  exempt until there were vehicles that met your

         20  requirements, and then that you would have to

         21  actively pursue vehicles that met your requirements,

         22  rather than simply exempting you?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ANTONELLI: Sure.

         24                 We're not sort of refusing to comply

         25  with anything. We're complying with the low-sulfur
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          2  diesel requirement that the school buses now comply

          3  with.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Right.

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ANTONELLI: So we

          6  would retrofit existing buses, as well as require

          7  that all the new buses have that ability to use the

          8  low-sulfur diesel.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Part of the

         10  reason, at least my rationale for voting for this

         11  legislation, is to stimulate the industry to produce

         12  vehicles, and one of the reasons that they don't

         13  produce the vehicles, or maybe now with the fuel

         14  crisis there will be more impetus for this, is the

         15  fact that they don't know if there is demand there.

         16  But if we could say there is a demand there, then

         17  maybe they would produce the vehicle. So, if we said

         18  in the legislation that you would exempt until the

         19  appropriate vehicle was available, but then when the

         20  appropriate vehicles are available you would have to

         21  buy them, that would in my mind would be a

         22  preferable approach than simply exempting you. So,

         23  that's the first -- I think that reflects my views

         24  on the first issue.

         25                 The second issue is the emergency
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          2  vehicles. What are they exempted from? All the

          3  regulations, including the low-sulfur fuel and all

          4  that?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ANTONELLI: Yes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: And what is

          7  the reason for that?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ANTONELLI: The

          9  reason for that is that we need to be able to buy

         10  vehicles that meet our needs that are not only

         11  derived from the best in its class approach of

         12  procurement.

         13                 Because essentially what legislation

         14  requires is that every type of vehicle would be

         15  purchased best in its class, and best in its class

         16  may not work for us. And we need to have the ability

         17  to purchase the type of vehicle that has the

         18  suspension, you know, the power train, the ability

         19  to have emergency equipment on it. And that's it. I

         20  mean, the alternative would be to challenge each one

         21  in a process that has not been formulated yet. And

         22  that would clearly be a burden --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Well, again,

         24  couldn't it say best in the class and meet the

         25  requirements?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ANTONELLI: No,

          3  no, no. The way the -- my understanding of the

          4  legislation is it's, for every type of vehicle the

          5  City would bid best in its class that meets certain

          6  emissions requirements set by the City and different

          7  standards, different industry standards.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: But it would

          9  have to meet also the requirements of the task,

         10  wouldn't it?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ANTONELLI: Not

         12  necessarily.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: That doesn't

         14  make sense to me.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ANTONELLI:

         16  Because our task would be specific to our agency or

         17  specific to emergency response.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: That would be

         19  the stimulation you would put on the bid.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ANTONELLI: No,

         21  but the City would bid each contract as best in its

         22  class. So, they would pick, for example, four-door

         23  sedan, and they would pick the most efficient

         24  four-door sedan. I don't know what the categories

         25  are going to be because it hasn't been formulated
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          2  yet. And if that sedan does not meet our

          3  requirements, we would sort of have no option if we

          4  were not given this exemption. This exemption will

          5  allow us --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: The bid

          7  should put all the requirements, including whatever

          8  requirements you have.

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ANTONELLI: The

         10  vehicle purchases will be done in a manner by

         11  vehicle class, and agencies would have to pick

         12  vehicles within those classes. But if there's a

         13  particular class of vehicle, whether it be an SUV or

         14  sedan that we use for an emergency response, it may

         15  not suit our needs.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Well, then

         17  you should change the bidding requirements.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ANTONELLI: Well,

         19  we can't because of the law. The law requires that

         20  vehicles be bid as best in its class, based on

         21  emissions --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: But it also

         23  has to have certain other characteristics that meet

         24  your needs, it seems to me.

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ANTONELLI: Except

                                                            29

          1  ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  that the needs that we would have would be similar

          3  to those that are exempted under the law.

          4                 So, we may require police-type

          5  vehicles and there are going to be no bids for

          6  police-type vehicles best in its class, because

          7  they're already exempt. And the industry, as you

          8  said earlier, is building police-type vehicles.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: If I could just

         10  jump in there, if I could jump in for a second

         11  there. There is a clarification that I'd like to

         12  make, that may inform the colloquy between you. I

         13  think Counsel to the Committee could clarify it

         14  better than I, and, so, Donna, if you could just

         15  provide this clarification, if you could inform the

         16  discussion.

         17                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Local Law 38 requires

         18  that each light duty vehicle, and each medium-duty

         19  vehicle talks to each specific vehicle, has to be

         20  the lowest emitting vehicle according to a certain

         21  hierarchy within the bill that meets the City's

         22  needs, it's on a vehicle-per-vehicle basis.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Well, I don't

         24  want to belabor the hearing with it. I'll discuss it

         25  further with the staff. I don't fully understand it.
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          2  I also am a little troubled by your reference to

          3  certain vehicles owned, maybe not owned, I don't

          4  know, I guess they don't own them, the City owns

          5  them, these are assigned to high-level supervisory

          6  staff, and the fact that they may have to make an

          7  emergency call once in awhile doesn't seem to me to

          8  justify exemption of that kind of vehicle from these

          9  requirements at all.

         10                 So, I just would say that the fact

         11  that the chief may have to respond to an emergency

         12  occasionally, doesn't mean that the chief should not

         13  have a high-performing, in terms of pollution

         14  prevention car. So, that's just my comment, but we

         15  can discuss that further.

         16                 I don't know if you want to say

         17  anything about that.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ANTONELLI: I

         19  think the Chief and I, I certainly will disagree. I

         20  mean, it's not just once in awhile, it's quite

         21  frequent.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: The Chief

         23  shouldn't have a car, I'm not talking about this

         24  chief, particularly. I'm not saying that the high

         25  level personnel shouldn't have cars. I'm saying they
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          2  can have cars that are, you know, pollution, limited

          3  pollution, and shouldn't be exempted. You know,

          4  everybody has some excuse, but the necessity is the

          5  mother of invention. If we don't insist that

          6  vehicles are in fact high-performing at low

          7  emissions level, we're not going to get anywhere.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ANTONELLI: I

          9  think we basically agree, with the exception of this

         10  small number of vehicles out of our fleet that we

         11  feel we have to be equipped just like our law

         12  enforcement counterparts.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         14                 Thank you, Council Member Koppell.

         15                 Council Member Stewart.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you,

         17  Mr. Chair.

         18                 I want to go back to the statement

         19  that you made that you have converted the powerhouse

         20  on Rikers Island from a boiler plant that burned

         21  fuel oil to a plant fueled by clean air burning

         22  natural gas. Could you tell me what kind of savings

         23  you have generated with that change? Do you have any

         24  figures to show there is a change in cost?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ANTONELLI: Oh,
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          2  absolutely. We've saved a tremendous amount of money

          3  to the City.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Yes, but I

          5  wanted to know if you have a figure.

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ANTONELLI: We had

          7  an initial savings when we did the conversion, but

          8  just to give you an example from last year to this

          9  year, we saved about another three and a half

         10  million dollars. But we'd be happy to get you that

         11  information. It's been over a long period of time,

         12  so we can share the incremental savings.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: You also

         14  claimed that there are other organizations that had

         15  exemptions, these requirements of these buses. Which

         16  one of the organizations are you talking about?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ANTONELLI: Oh,

         18  it's Police, Fire, Office of Emergency Management.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Are you

         20  saying that all of these departments have

         21  exemptions?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ANTONELLI: Yes.

         23  And DEP, Department of Environmental Protection.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: All right.

         25  You mentioned also with the fuel, the hybrid bus, in
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          2  that they are not to the size, in terms of capacity

          3  right now, apart from the capacity, could those

          4  buses be retrofitted with all the gadgets and all of

          5  the things that you needed to transport?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ANTONELLI: It's

          7  not the gadgets, it's the actual size of the bus.

          8                 We can't get a bus that will fit into

          9  our sally ports.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: To fit into

         11  your?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ANTONELLI: Pardon

         13  me?

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: To fit into

         15  your? What did you say?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ANTONELLI: Sally

         17  ports, which are the secure areas by the courts. You

         18  know, the gates --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Right.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ANTONELLI: So the

         21  inmates can be taken off the bus, and in a secure

         22  manner.

         23                 There aren't buses that are made of

         24  that size that have the same capacity that the

         25  current buses we use have. So, that's the dilemma we
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          2  face.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: They are now

          4  smaller buses, but they can't fit into the --

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ANTONELLI:

          6  They're smaller and have a lot of passenger

          7  capacity.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Now, if

          9  they're carrying less passengers, as compared to

         10  their size, you know, I don't see where smaller

         11  being that they can't fit in, you may have to

         12  purchase more buses.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ANTONELLI: Right.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Instead of

         15  saying, well, listen, the 20 percent would be two

         16  buses, now you will do three buses for in terms of

         17  capacity.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ANTONELLI: Well,

         19  the problem with that is, not only is it costly, we

         20  would be putting more buses on the road and we would

         21  lose advantage of the better environmentally sound

         22  bus because we're going to be putting more buses and

         23  burning more fuel, in addition to having to staff

         24  all of those buses.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: They might be
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          2  burning more fuel, but it's basically much more

          3  efficient buses now because of the fact that they're

          4  hybrid buses, instead of the regular gas burning.

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ANTONELLI: Right.

          6  But we would have to run more of them, and that

          7  would be a problem. We'd have to run more buses,

          8  we'd have to staff more buses.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: I could

         10  understand you'd have to do that but --

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ANTONELLI: And,

         12  of course, the other piece is, as I mentioned

         13  earlier, the chassis itself wouldn't support the

         14  weight of all the compartments and the steel, you

         15  know, secure sort of cages we have to put on the

         16  outside of the bus. Screening I should say.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Has there

         18  been any attempt to at least have the manufacturers

         19  build buses to your specs to make sure that we have

         20  for those type capacity-sized bus, with the other

         21  requirement that you're talking about?

         22                 In other words, now, if I want to get

         23  a bus to do maybe dental care, to go across the

         24  City, to do that, you can go to the manufacturer,

         25  and they build to my specification. I'm asking, has
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          2  there been any attempt made to at least get the

          3  manufacturers to build buses to your specs that are

          4  hybrid?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ANTONELLI: I

          6  think the problem is, there isn't a bus built, a

          7  body of a bus built, and a frame that would

          8  accommodate our needs.

          9                 See, you can always sort of retrofit

         10  the bus, the interior, add equipment and that sort

         11  of thing. But the bus --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: That's not

         13  what I'm asking. That's not what I'm asking.

         14                 If you see something that you need,

         15  it may not be on the market yet. It may not be on

         16  the street. But we can go to the manufacturer and

         17  have them build to the specifications. I'm asking if

         18  any attempt was made to do so?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ANTONELLI: You're

         20  asking if there was any attempt to get a custom made

         21  bus, completely designed from scratch for us?

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Right.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ANTONELLI: No.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: All right.

         25  Thank you, Mr. Chair.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

          3                 Thank you, Council Member Stewart.

          4                 I have a few follow-up questions

          5  here.

          6                 With regard to the number of

          7  emergency vehicles you purchase each year, and you

          8  indicated that the number was about ten; does that

          9  include leased vehicles? Are these outright

         10  purchases?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ANTONELLI: These

         12  are purchases.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Purchases, okay.

         14                 Do you lease vehicles as well? Or

         15  acquisitions are basically outright purchase?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ANTONELLI: Right.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         18                 What is the breakdown by -- hang on.

         19  Okay, what is the breakdown by model and fuel type

         20  of the emergency response vehicles purchased each

         21  year? I don't know if you would have that

         22  information available at your fingertips. But by

         23  model and fuel type of vehicles purchased each year.

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ANTONELLI:

         25  Purchased each year? I can give you the breakdown in
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          2  terms of what they are now. The current fleet.

          3  Basically Crown Victorias, Impalas, Ford Taurus's.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And these are

          5  emergency response vehicles, right, only?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ANTONELLI: Those

          7  are basically the type of vehicles we use in

          8  emergency response, yes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Do you purchase

         10  any diesel vehicles that are involved in emergency

         11  response?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ANTONELLI: Very

         13  few. We have a couple of emergency service unit

         14  trucks, but very few. It's literally a handful. And

         15  the replacement on them is very rare. They last a

         16  long time.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right, mm-hmm.

         18                 What does the emergency equipment in

         19  or on these vehicles consist of, the emergency

         20  response vehicles?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ANTONELLI:

         22  Generally it's suspension. Sometimes lights and

         23  sirens. You know, you may get special handling

         24  packages.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Cop, it's like a
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          2  cop package.

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ANTONELLI: Yes,

          4  sort of a police intercepter type thing.

          5                 If it's a K-9 unit, you know, it

          6  would obviously have an area to contain the dog.

          7  That's pretty much it.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, thank you.

          9                 Is there a maximum number of

         10  especially equipped vehicles that the DOC can have?

         11  Skip that question. Forget that last question.

         12                 How many emergency responses does DOC

         13  engage in during an average year? What is the nature

         14  of those responses? And to what extent do those

         15  responses involve specially equipped vehicles?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ANTONELLI: Well,

         17  if I refer back to the testimony, we talked about,

         18  you know, fires, fight fires, 4,600 emergency

         19  ambulatory runs, 700 high-security escorts during

         20  the year, that type of thing.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right. Okay.

         22                 I think it's probably going to be the

         23  final question. With regard to the emergency

         24  response vehicles, you indicated that it's kind of

         25  like a police interceptor kind of package on the
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          2  car. Why is it not possible to sort of purchase the

          3  lowest-emitting vehicle that is on the market that

          4  could give you those attributes?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ANTONELLI: If the

          6  lowest-emitting on the market gave us that, we would

          7  obviously purchase it.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I think the

          9  statute calls for the lowest-emitting vehicle that

         10  kind of like met the needs, even though it wouldn't

         11  be like the cleanest, obviously it wouldn't be a

         12  zero-emission vehicle or anything like that, but we

         13  call for, what the bill calls for is lowest-emitting

         14  vehicles that meet those needs?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ANTONELLI: If it

         16  met our needs, we would purchase them. The question

         17  is if it doesn't, we have no alternative.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         19  you.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ANTONELLI: Okay.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Ken Stewart has

         22  a follow-up. I recognize Council Member Stewart.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you,

         24  Mr. Chair.

         25                 Apart from the buses, and you talk
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          2  about the emergency vehicles that supervisors may

          3  use and other folks; what is your policy now in

          4  terms of making sure that those vehicles meet the

          5  requirement of the fuel efficiency, in terms of

          6  getting new buses, new vehicles?

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ANTONELLI: Well,

          8  we were for the longest time purchasing what we call

          9  flex fuel vehicles, which were the Ford Taurus's

         10  that use ethanol. That was sort of the way we would

         11  comply with the law. In fact, that's why we're

         12  building an ethanol station. It seems like the

         13  technology is changing and we're going to hybrid.

         14  But that's for the longest time was our attempt to

         15  meet that environmental requirement, is to use, you

         16  know, ethanol fuel vehicles.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: So, when you

         18  say you've been doing it for the longest time --

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ANTONELLI: Right.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: How many

         21  years now?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ANTONELLI: I

         23  don't know how many years, but since the alternate

         24  fuel law was in effect.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: All right,
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          2  which is four or five years?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Pardon?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: How many

          5  years now since it's been in effect?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, 1991.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: So, in

          8  essence, what it's saying, you should not have any

          9  vehicle that is not considered fuel efficient?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ANTONELLI: Well,

         11  the law always allowed a certain percentage of

         12  vehicles --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Right.

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ANTONELLI: - that

         15  did not have to meet that requirement.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Right. So,

         17  what you're saying, you're basing what you're doing

         18  just on the law. Not necessarily going forth on a

         19  greater scale.

         20                 So, if you have to -- let's assume

         21  that you have to purchase five vehicles, you are

         22  saying that you will only purchase 20 percent of

         23  that?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ANTONELLI: We

         25  would base it on our need. And if the need, if the
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          2  vehicles do not meet our need, obviously we couldn't

          3  purchase them.

          4                 To the extent that a fuel efficient

          5  or an alternate fuel vehicle like ethanol existed,

          6  or like now, for example, we're currently buying

          7  Prius's and Ford Escapes, because for non-emergency

          8  purposes, they're fine and we are buying them. So

          9  where we can, we buy them.

         10                 Where they don't meet our emergency

         11  response needs, then we seek to buy vehicles that do

         12  meet those needs. They'll be within sort of that 20

         13  percent, which the law permitted.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: I just feel

         15  that you might be just doing what is basically

         16  necessary to be within that law, and not going

         17  beyond that to say, well, listen, we need to have

         18  fuel efficient vehicles, and any time we're dealing

         19  with those vehicles that may not be the buses which

         20  we cannot get, that meet the requirements in terms

         21  of the other factors, that at least the vehicles

         22  that supervisors and all those folks use should be

         23  fuel efficient vehicles, and that's what I'm looking

         24  at. Whether it's 20 percent or 80 percent, whatever

         25  we purchase.
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ANTONELLI: We

          3  have tried to maximize the vehicles by purchasing

          4  Ford Taurus's in the past that would run on ethanol,

          5  we would by hybrids when we could. For example, we

          6  have ten Escapes we're waiting for delivery on, and

          7  we're trying a Ford Prius, I mean a Toyota Prius.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: All right.

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ANTONELLI: So

         10  where we can, we have really tried.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: All right.

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ANTONELLI: I

         13  think our commitment, we've invested a lot of money

         14  in the fueling station and everything else, I think

         15  the commitment is there.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you,

         17  sir.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         19  you, Council Member Stewart.

         20                 I have no further questions, but I

         21  would like to take this opportunity, you know,

         22  subject and apart from the subject matter before the

         23  Committee today, to indicate my gratitude to all of

         24  you for your dedicated services to the City on

         25  behalf of the residents of the 24th Council District
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          2  for, you know, outstanding service to the City each

          3  and every day, maintaining, as you indicated, one of

          4  the safest, albeit sort of far-flung complicated in

          5  the prison systems, jails in the country, and we're

          6  very gratified and honored by the presence today of

          7  so many of the Department leadership. So, I'm just

          8  grateful that we had this opportunity to hear your

          9  views on this matter today.

         10                 We'll be continuing to discuss this

         11  at a staff level. We'll also be engaging the Mayor's

         12  Office, and, you know, we hope to come to some

         13  successful conclusion that meets everyone's needs.

         14  But once again, please go from here knowing that you

         15  have the admiration and respect of this Chair, this

         16  Committee, this Council, residents of the City of

         17  New York.

         18                 Thank you all very much, and God

         19  bless you.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ANTONELLI: Thank

         21  you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And the next

         23  witness, Stephanie Tatham. Stephanie Tatham of

         24  Environmental Defense. Although, it indicates you

         25  are representing the American Lung Association,
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          2  League of Conservation Voters and NRDC.

          3                 If you could just take your position,

          4  I wanted to just take a moment to say good-bye to

          5  our guests from the Department of Correction.

          6                 You're with us to represent so many

          7  entities that are near and dear to this Committee.

          8  We appreciate that. Donna will provide the oath, put

          9  you under oath, and then you can proceed with your

         10  statement.

         11                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

         12  right hand.

         13                 In the testimony that you're about to

         14  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         15  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         16                 MS. TATHAM: I do.

         17                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Once

         19  again, we welcome you, and look forward to your

         20  statement.

         21                 MS. TATHAM: Thank you, Council Member

         22  Gennaro, and other members of the Council, for the

         23  opportunity to make a statement on Introduction 208

         24  of 2006.

         25                 This joint statement is made on
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          2  behalf of the American Lung Association of the City

          3  of New York, Environmental Defense, the New York

          4  League of Conservation Voters and the Natural

          5  Resources Defense Council.

          6                 We would like to express our concern

          7  with Introduction 208 of 2006, insofar as the

          8  potential to weaken the public health and

          9  environmental protections the City Council enacted

         10  through the passage of Local Laws 38 through 42 of

         11  2005. Specifically Local Law 38.

         12                 We applaud the Council for the broad

         13  scope of those bills. Nonetheless, we continue to

         14  recognize that limited exemptions may be required

         15  for vehicles that are especially equipped for

         16  emergency response, including vehicles owned by the

         17  Department of Corrections.

         18                 We commend the City Council for

         19  continuing to require the Department of Correction's

         20  buses, including those specially equipped for

         21  emergency response to use ultra-low-sulfur diesel

         22  fuel, and to install best available emissions

         23  control technical for diesel-fuel powered motor

         24  vehicles.

         25                 We also appreciate the Department of
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          2  Correction's environmental commitments in this and

          3  other areas.

          4                 Our concern with Introduction 208 is

          5  that it exempts all Department of Correction's

          6  buses, as opposed to all the emergency response

          7  buses from alternative fuel purchasing requirements.

          8                 Such an exemption seems overbroad.

          9  Local Law 38 of 2005 already allows for flexibility

         10  in meeting its requirements. This is true in three

         11  ways: First, the bill does not specify any one

         12  alternative fuel, and gives agencies maximum

         13  flexibility to identify the most appropriate option,

         14  be it natural gas, liquified petroleum gas, hydrogen

         15  electricity or any other alcohol-based fuel that is

         16  at least 85 percent singularly or combination,

         17  methanol, ethanol, or alcohol or ether.

         18                 Second, Local Law 38 only requires

         19  that 20 percent of the buses that the City purchases

         20  in a given fiscal year be alternative fuel buses.

         21  Presumably, the requirements of the legislation

         22  could be met through purchases made by other

         23  agencies in lieu of purchases by the Department of

         24  Corrections. No other city agency has a blanket

         25  exemption from the alternative fuel bus purchasing
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          2  requirements.

          3                 Third, the regulations specify that

          4  purchases of alternative fuel buses that exceed the

          5  minimum 20 percent purchase requirements for a

          6  particular fiscal year may be used to satisfy

          7  applicable requirements for the immediately

          8  succeeding fiscal year. Advance planning, such as is

          9  given to the non-emergency procurements covered by

         10  the regulations, should allow the City to meet the

         11  goals of Local Law 38.

         12                 Before considering a blanket

         13  exemption of alternative fuel bus purchasing

         14  requirements for a particular agency, we ask the

         15  City and the City Council to identify why the

         16  current legal framework will not work, as it has for

         17  the last 15 years.

         18                 The market for alternative fuel

         19  vehicles is growing rapidly and to exempt an agency

         20  now does not make sense given the continuing nature

         21  of technological evolution and the flexibility of

         22  the existing law.

         23                 Backsliding on these alternative fuel

         24  bus purchasing requirements on the part of one

         25  agency sets a negative precedent, one that could
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          2  continue to other agencies. Local Laws 38 through 42

          3  of 2004 public the City on the road to cleaner and

          4  healthier air. For the health of City residents, the

          5  Department of Corrections should not be granted an

          6  exemption to alternative fuel bus purchasing

          7  requirements for all of its buses. Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

          9  you for your statement. I just have some questions.

         10                 Has Environmental Defense done

         11  research on the size and types of alternative fuel

         12  buses?

         13                 And if so, are you aware of any that

         14  could meet the Department's needs based on their

         15  testimony today?

         16                 MS. TATHAM: We have done some limited

         17  research. We were only recently made aware of these

         18  concerns, though we haven't had time to do extensive

         19  research, although we'd be happy to work with the

         20  Department of Correction to do such research in the

         21  future.

         22                 Speaking with a distributor located

         23  up in Port Jefferson this morning, he said that he

         24  thought that there were buses out there that could

         25  be designed or customized to meet the Department of
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          2  Correction's needs. So, whether or not there are

          3  existing buses, I know that there are existing

          4  hybrid electric existing buses that are 30 feet or

          5  less in size, and I think that those could probably

          6  be customized to fit the Department of Correction's

          7  needs.

          8                 Blue Bird is one manufacturer and

          9  Thomas is one manufacturer who make customized

         10  correctional transport vehicles, and they are

         11  willing to customize those vehicles to

         12  specifications required.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         14  you.

         15                 Do you believe there are options

         16  available to the Department that can meet their

         17  emergency response needs and emit less pollutants?

         18                 MS. TATHAM: I do think that there are

         19  options. Our extensive experience with best

         20  available emissions control technology, we haven't

         21  seen any negative performance affects on equipment

         22  as a result of that technology, particularly if

         23  you're applying a new engine in which meets EPA, you

         24  know, 2007 particulate matter standards.

         25                 So, from our experience, we don't see
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          2  a negative effect. Nonetheless, we do recognize that

          3  exemptions were granted for emergency response

          4  vehicles in other departments, and are fine with

          5  Department of Correction exemptions as well.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

          7                 Okay, I recognize Council Member

          8  Stewart for questions.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Do you get

         10  the opinion from this piece of legislation that the

         11  Department of Correction is really trying to exempt

         12  all their buses from this piece of legislation?

         13                 MS. TATHAM: From the alternative fuel

         14  bus purchasing requirements?

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Right.

         16                 MS. TATHAM: Yes, I do get the

         17  impression that they want to exempt all of their

         18  buses from that requirement.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: In light of

         20  the fact that all of us are going in the direction

         21  of having much more efficient buses and vehicles,

         22  wouldn't it be a fact that they will ultimately be

         23  going along with that also, because most vehicles

         24  would be considered fuel efficient in a short time?

         25                 MS. TATHAM: Are you asking if as they
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          2  replace their vehicles their fleet will naturally

          3  get cleaner as a result --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Yes. Because

          5  the vehicles that are being built now, as from

          6  federal laws and all of that, that the vehicles will

          7  be much more fuel efficient, et cetera?

          8                 MS. TATHAM: I think that that's true,

          9  but we would still continue to support alternative

         10  fuel purchasing requirements. And the reason why is

         11  because even cleaner vehicles that are being

         12  designed today that don't run on alternative fuels

         13  aren't necessarily more climate-friendly. And we

         14  recognize that climate-friendliness is a big issue,

         15  and we think that alternative fuel vehicles have the

         16  potential to get much less carbon emissions, and we

         17  think that was one of the reasons that the City

         18  Council originally passed the alternative fuels

         19  requirement, and we supported that then and continue

         20  to support that.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: And you agree

         22  that 20 percent is not a large pick of their fleet,

         23  so when they do any purchase, 20 percent is a small,

         24  or for whatever they're purchasing --

         25                 MS. TATHAM: Very small. We think it's

                                                            54

          1  ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  very reasonable. In fact, if you look at Canada's

          3  Department of Correction's, they have a requirement

          4  that 75 percent of their vehicle purchases be

          5  alternative-fueled vehicles. And that applies to

          6  their entire vehicle fleet, emergency,

          7  non-emergency, buses, non-buses. So, I think that 20

          8  percent is extraordinarily reasonable and I see that

          9  other countries are doing more.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: The Deputy

         11  Commissioner said basically that when they try to

         12  replace these buses, I think the word he used was

         13  chassis, he said some parts of the bus is not

         14  adaptable for their purpose, and so it's a

         15  difficulty in terms of getting buses that can be

         16  adapted for what they are doing to meet their

         17  requirements; what is your response to that

         18  statement?

         19                 MS. TATHAM: My understanding is that

         20  manufacturers are able to custom build buses that

         21  could meet those requirements. I think it's

         22  certainly possible to make a heavy-duty bus to meet

         23  those requirements. If you can make, you know,

         24  large-duty vehicles run on alternative fuel, I see

         25  no reason why a large-duty bus couldn't also run on
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          2  alternative fuel.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: So there is

          4  no excuse?

          5                 MS. TATHAM: I don't think there is an

          6  excuse, which is why we oppose the exemption.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: All right,

          8  thank you.

          9                 Mr. Chair, thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         11  you, Council Member Stewart.

         12                 And thank you, Stephanie. Stephanie,

         13  your last name is Titham?

         14                 MS. TATHAM: Tatham.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Tatham. And, so,

         16  we appreciate your being here, for the benefit of

         17  your views. You mentioned that you had access to

         18  information regarding what they do in Canada. If you

         19  could provide that information to the Counsel to the

         20  Committee, Donna DeCostanzo, that would help us in

         21  our overall consideration of the Administration's

         22  position.

         23                 MS. TATHAM: Absolutely.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: So that would be

         25  helpful. If you could get that to Donna, that would
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          2  be super.

          3                 Does anyone else wish to be heard?

          4  Seeing no one, I want to thank everyone for coming,

          5  and this hearing is adjourned.

          6                 (Hearing concluded at 2:20 p.m.)
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